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	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: In the 1840s, this property was used as a one-room schoolhouse, thought to be related to the Sunday School founded by attorney and member of the Boston Unitarian group Caleb Buckingham. It was sold as a residence in 1854 to John O'Brien, a railroad worker, by Betsy Kelsey, who went by her maiden name but was married to Unitarian Reverend A.H. Conant. The property was held tax-free before that sale, indicating that the core of the house may date to its original use as a school.

It was also a residence for the Raftery family and maintains the  architectural character established during their renovations. Kate Raftery founded the Little Traveler out of her home at 404 S Third in 1922. Over the years, the business grew enough that the family had to move out of the house. Although an apartment remained in the second floor of the business, J.H. Raftery, her son, and his family moved to this address at 208 S River Lane in the late 1920s. At that point, the house was a T-shape with porches on the north and south facades which filled in the gaps of the T to make a rectangular shape. It is visible in Sanborn Fire Insurance maps in some form beginning in 1891, when the lot first appears. It can be assumed that the family's need for growth, and their own residence on the street, led the Raftery's to use their influence in creating the River Lane Beautification plan.

Between 1926 and 1928, the first renovated homes along South River Lane, near Campbell and Franklin Streets, were designed by Howard Raftery, the son of Kate and Edmond Raftery, who graduated from architectural school in 1927. Howard later joined the local architectural firm led by Walter Frazier, who was known for creating traditionally-inspired designs for the affluent residents of Chicago’s North Shore communities. Additionally, J.H. Raftery’s renovations were carried out by August Wilson, as reported in General Report on July 12, 1946.

At the Raftery's home, changes are visible on Sanborn Fire Insurance maps between 1923 and 1930. A series of additions made the house into an irregular shape with an attached garage and an additional outbuilding in the rear of the lot. In 1946, Raftery received a permit for more construction, specifically $1100 worth of additions and alterations to the existing dwelling, performed by contractor August Wilson. The Rafterys moved to a new house on South Bennett Street in 1954, and were replaced by Mrs George (Florence) Overton, who was returning to Geneva from St Charles. She remained until at least 1966.

This property contributes to the historic district for its involvement with influential residents Kate and J H Raftery. It possibly contributes as well because of its involvement with early education and the Unitarian church in the city.



	SOURCES: Geneva Republican; Geneva Illinios 150 Reminders of 150 Years; Polk's St Charles, Batavia, and Geneva City Directories; Sanborn Fire Insurance maps
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	PROPERTY ADDRESS: 208 South River Lane
	SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: 1928-29
	ARCHITECT: Unknown
	DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1859
	COMMON NAME: Unknown 
	GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION: O'Brien House
	ARCHITECTURAL DATA: Gable-Front, Cottage/One-Room School
	OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Complex
	NUMBER OF STORIES: 1
	FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Not Visible
	PRIMARY WALL MATERIALS: Clapboard
	FRONT PORCH: Entry
	VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: N/A
	ENTRY DOORS: Non-Historic 
	WINDOW MATERIAL: Wood
	WINDOW STYLE: Double-Hung 6/6; Casement
	PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Cross Gabled 
	PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Asphalt Shingles 
	VISIBLE CHIMNEY: Yes 
	CHIMNEY MATERIAL: Brick 
	OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES: 
	PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER PIN: 12-03-480-004
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